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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES
195 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-5034 1-8006-852-3345 Ext. 5034
Fax; 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

General Funds.

www.dhhs.nh.gov

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into amendments to existing contracts with the Contractors listed below for
transportation services to support older adults and individuals with disabilities statewide, by
exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the total price limitation by $2,772,088.20 from
$2,283,283.50 to $5,055,371.70 and by extending the completion dates from June 30, 2024 to June
30, 2026, effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 51% Federal Funds. 49%

S

February 21, 2024

The original Agreements for all Contractors, with the exception of North Conway
Community Center, were approved by Governor and Council on January 18, 2023 (item #13).
The original contract for North Conway Community Center was approved by Governor and
Council on February 8, 2023 (ltem #19).

Conway, Eaton,
Jackson and
Madison

- Increase y /
Vendor Name versor Area Served Cu.r re.nt Crice (Decrease) REYIS.E R F_’nce
Code Limitation I Limitation
Community Action
Partnership of 177200 | Strafford Count
Stratford County — Y $34,812.90 $82,062.00 $116,874.90
Dover, NH
Community Action Belknap and
Program Belknap and | 177203 |  Merrimack $386,495.10 | $528,468.00 | $914,963.10
Merrimack Counties, Counties ) ; :
inc. — Concord, NH
Easter Seals New Hillsborough,
Hampsbhire, Inc. — Merrimack,
Manchester, NH 177204 | Rockingham $173,669.70 | $181,861.80 | $355,531.50
and Strafford
Counties
Gibson Center for Albany, Bartlett,
Senior Services, Inc Chatham,
— North Conway, NH Conway, Center
155344 | Conway, North $27,833.40 $69,936.00 $97,769.40

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens o achieve health and independence.
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Grafton County
Senior Citizens
Council, Inc. -
Lebanon, NH

177675,

Grafton County

$482,713.50

$435,408.00

$918,121.50

Home Healthcare,
Hospice and
Community Services,
Inc. -

Keene, NH

177274

"Keene

$196,074.60

$261,414.00

$457,488.60

Newport Senior
Center, Inc. —
Newport, NH

177250

Newport

-$51,732.90

© $93,342.00

$145,074.90

North Conway
Community Center -
North Conway, NH

154150

Carroll County

$6,880.80

$16,920.00

$/23.800.80

Rockingham Nutrition
& Meals on Wheels
Program, Inc. -
Brentwood, NH

155197

Rockingham
County

$379,713.00

$296,015.40

$675,728.40

Southwestern
Community Services,
Inc. -

Keene, NH

177511

Sullivan County

$71,219.10

$269,028.00

$340,247.10

St. Joseph
Community Services,
Inc. -

Merrimack, NH-

155093

Manchester

$53,551.80

$87,420.00

$140,971.80

Tri-County
Community Action
Program, Inc. —
Berlin, NH

177195

Carroll County,
Coos County
and Grafton

County

$418,586.70

$450,213.00

$868,799.70

TOTAL

$2.772,088.20

$5.055,371.70

$ 2.283,283.50

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, and are

anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractors to continue providing on-demand,
tailored transportation options to older adults and individuals with disabilities statewide who
require transportation to and from their homes to medical appointments, and other transportation
necessary to maintain their health and independence in the community . The Contractors provide
transportation services as directed by the Department, in accordance with Older Americans Act
Services: Title ll|B-Supportive Services.

Approximately 3,558 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.

The Contractors will continue to provide transportation services for eligible individuals
ages 60 and older, and adults with disabiiities. Services are funded through Title HI of the Older



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 3

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services through quarterly Program
Service Reports which include but are not limited to:

~ Number of individuals served by town and in the aggregate.

» Number of unduplicated individuals served.

¢ Any unmet need or waiting list including the length of time each individual has been
on the waiting list.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fundlng agreement of the
partles and Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
services for two (2) of the four (4) years available. -

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, older adults and individuals
with disabilities may not have access to transportation to medical and other appointments or trips
necessary to maintain their independence in the community.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.044, FAIN 2301 NHOASS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no Ionger available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lo Weaver ' &V

Comnissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communilies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.




05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY
-ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVCS PROG, ADMIN ON AGING SVCS GRANTS (51% Fed 49% Gen)

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc

Fiscal Current Modified |Increased Increased
YEar Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget {Decreased) {Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation of $128,169.00 $128,169.00
: 48130315 i
Clients
2024 512-500352 Transportation of 258,326.10 $258,326.10
=t poreton ol ag1zo31s | °
2025 512-500352 Transportation of $ - 1$264,234.00 $264,234.00
: 48130315
Clients
2028 512-500352 Transportation of '3 - [$264,234.00 $ 264,234.00
: 48130315
Clients
Subtotal $ 386,495.10 $ 528,468.00 $ 914,963.10
Community Action Partnership of Strafford
. |Caunty
Fiscal i Current Modified |Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title | Job Number- | Budget (Decreased) (Decreased) Amount
‘ Amount .
2023 512-500352 Transportation of| 48130315 $6,697.50 % $6,697.50
2024 512-500352 Transportation of] 48130315 $28,115.40 % $28,11540
2025 512-500352 Transportaéll?:nttasf 48130315 3 - |$41,031.00 $ 41,031.00
2026 512-500352 Transponatlc_m_of 48130315 % - |$41,031.00 - $41,031.00
Clients .
$ 34,812.90 $82,062.00 $116,874.90
Easter Seals
Fiscal . Current Modified |Increased Increased
SaAr Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget {Decreased) (Decreased) Amt
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation of| 48130315 $ 82,738.80 $82,738.80




2024 512-500352 | Transportation of] 48130315 $90,830.90 $90,930.90
2025 512-500352 Transporta(t;l[ti::nfsf 48130315 $ - |$90,930.90 $ 90,930.90
2026 512-500352 Transporta:ct:l;?n of 48130315 5 - |$90,930.90 $90,930.90
ients
Subtotal $ 173,669.70 $ 181,861.80 $ 355,531.50
Gibson Center for Seniors
Fiscal _ : Current Modified (Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget (Decreased) - (Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 | Transportation of] 48130315 $ 8,544.60 $ 8,544.60
2024 512-500352 Transportation of] 48130315 $19,288.80 $ 19,288.80
2025 512-500352 Transportag:lci):n?; 48130315 3 - 1% 34,968.00 $ 34,968.00
2026 512-500352 Transportahgn of 48130315 $ - |$34,868.00 $ 34,968.00
Clients
Subtotal $ 27,833.40 $ 69,936.00 $ 97,769.40
Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc
Fiscal Current Modified |Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget {Decreased) {Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation of] 48130315 $ 164,349.60 3 $ 164,349.60
2024 512-500352 Transportation of] 48130315 $ 318,363.90 ] $ 318,363.90
2025 512-500352 Transportation of $ $217,704.00 $217,704.00
: 48130315
Clients
2026 512-500352 Transportation of 3 $217,704.00 $217,704.00
; 48130315 i
Clients ;
$ 482,713.50 $ 435,408.00 $ 918,121.50
Newport Senior Center
Fiscal . Current Modified |[Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget (Decreased) (Decreased) Amount
: : Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation of| 48130315 $ 19,020.90 $ 19,020.90




2024 512-500352 Transportation off] 48130315 $ 32,712.00 $32,712.00
2025 512-500352 Transportation of 5 - |%$46,671.00 $46,671.00
. 48130315 .
Clients
2026 512-500352 Transportation of b - |%$46.,671.00 $46,671.00
. 48130315
Clients
Subtotal $51,732.90 $ 93,342.00 $ 145,074.90
Rockingham Ni:tritionfMeaIs on Wheels f
Fis.cal Current Modified [Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number | Budget (Decreased) - {Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation off 48130315 $126,124,50 § $126,124.50
2024 512-500352 Transportation of| 48130315 $ 253,588.50 $ $ 253,588.50
2025 512-500352___|_Transportation-of 3 = {$7148,007.70 $ 148,007.70
: 48130315
Clients
2026 512-500352 Transportation of 3 - |$148,007.70 $ 148,007.70 -
: - 48130315
Clients
x $ 379,713.00 $ 296,015.40 $ 675,728.40
North Conway Community Center
Fiscal| Class/Object Class Title Job Number Current Modified |Increased Increased
Year Budget (Decreased) {Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation off 48130315 $ 3,440.40 $ 3,440.40
- 2024 512-500352 Transportation of] 48130315 $ 344040 e $ 3,440.40
2025 512-500352 Transportation of ) $ $ 8,460.00 $ 8,460.00
Clients| 48130315
2026 512-500352 Transportation of 3 - 1$8,4560.00 $ 8,460.00
Clients| 48130315 _
Subtotal $ 6,880.80 $16,920.00 $ 23,800.80
Southwestern Community Services
Fiscal " Current Modified |Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget {Decreased) {Decreased) Amount

Amount




2023 512-500352 Transportation of| 48130315 $21,967.80 3 $ 21,967.80
2024 512-500352 Transportation of] 48130315 $49,251.30 $ $49,251.30
2025 512-500352 Transportation of $ - 1$134,514.00 " $134,514.00
. . 48130315
Clients
2026 512-500352 Transportation of 3 $134,514.00 $134,514.00
. 48130315
Clients
$71,219.10 $ 269,028.00 $ 340,247.10
St. Joseph Community Services
Fiscal Current Modified |Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job.Number Budget (Decreased) (Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation of| - 48130315 $ 17.850.60 $ $ 17.850.60
2024 512-500352 Transportation off] 48130315 $ 35,701.20 $ $ 35,701.20
2025 512-500352 Transportation of ] $ - |$43,710.00 $43,710.00
: . 48130315
Clients )
2026 512-500352 Transportation of $ - |$43,710.00 $ 43,710.00
; 48130315
Clients
$ 53,551.80 $ 87,420.00 $ 140,971.80
Tri-County Community Action Program
Fiscal Current Medified |Increased Increased
Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget {Decreased) (Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 * |Transportation of 48130315 - $ 125,236.20 $125,236.20
2024 512-500352  |Transportation of | 48130315 $ 293,350.50 $ 293,350.50
2025 512-500352  |Transportation of $ - 1$225,106.50 $225,106.50
Clients 48130315
2026 512-500352 Transportation of $ - 1$225,106.50 $225,106.50
Clients 48130315
Su $ 418,586.70 $ 450,213.00 $ 868,799.70

Home Healthcare, Hospice (HHHCS)




"Fiscal Current Modified |Increased Increased
Year - Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget (Decreased) (Decreased) Amount
Amount
2023 512-500352 Transportation of 48130315 $.65,367.60 $ 65,367.60
2024 512-500352 Transportation of |+ 48130315 $130,707.00 $130,707.00
2025 512-500352  [Transportation of $ - |$130,707.00 $130,707.00
: 48130315
Clients
2026 512-500352 Transportation of 3 $130,707.00 $ 130,707.00
; 48130315
Clients
Subtotal $ 196,074.60 $ 261,414.00 $ 457,488.60
Total 7872 $ 2,283,283.50 $2,772,088.20 $ 5,055,371.70
Funding by Provider
Grand Total by Vendor SFY23 SFY24 SFY25 SFY26
Vendor Name Vendor Code . Budget Total Price
PO # udget Amoun | Budget Amount Amogunt Budget Amount Limitation
Community 177203
- Action Prograrmn ' $128,169.00 $258,326.10 $264,234.00 $264,234.00|- $914,963.10
Strafford ‘
Community 177200 $6,697.50 $28,115.40 $41,031.00 $41,031.00 $116,874.90
Action Belknap and
Merrimack
Easter Seal 177204 ! ]
asterseals $82,738.80 $90,930.90 $90,930.90 $90.930.90 $355.531.50
Gibson Center 155344 : '
for Seniors $8,544.60 $19,288.80 $34,968.00 $3‘-4,968.00 $97,769.40
Grafton County 177675
Senior Citizens
Council, In¢c
$164,349.60 $318,363.90 $217,704.00 $217,704.00  $918,121.50
Newport Senior 177250 '
$19,020.90 $32,712.00 $46,671.00 $46.,671.00 $145,074.90

Center




Rockingham 155197
Nutrition/Meals on $126,124.50 $253,588.50 $148,007.70 $148,007.70 $675,728.40
Wheels :
RSVP T8D $3,440.40 $3,440.40 $8,460.00 $8,460.00 $23,800.80
Southwestern
Community 177511
Services $21,967.80 $49,251.30 $134,514.00 " $134,514.00 $340,247.10
St. Joseph
Community 155093
Services . $17,850.60 $35,701.20 $43,710.00 $43,710.00 " $140,971.80
Tri-County 177195
Community Action
Program
$125,236.20 $293,350.50 $225,108.50 $225,106.50 $868,799.70
HHHCS 177274 $65,367.60 $130,707.00 $130,707.00 $130,707.00 $457,488.60
$769,507.50 $1,513,776.00 $1,386,044.10 $1,386,044.10 $5,055,371.70

$2.283,283.50
$5,085,371.70

$2,772,088.20

$5,055,371.70
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
- Amendment #1 o s,

g Thls Amendment to the Transportatlon Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshlre
-~ Deépartment of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Commumty Action Partnershrp
: of Strafford County (‘the Contractor') .

: WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Councﬂ
on January 18,:2023 (Item #13),-the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
‘and condmons specrf ed in the Contract andin consrderatlon of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS pursuant to Form P- 37, General' Provrsrons the Contract may be amended upon wntten
agreement of the partles and approval from the Goverrior and Executive Council; and :

‘ NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregomg and the mutual covenants and conditions contalned
_inthe Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1, -Form P-37 General Prowsmns Block 1.7, Completlon Date, to read
- June 30, 2026 ' :
2 .Form P-37, Generat Prows:ons Block 1.8, Prlce Limitation, to read:
$116,874.90
3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read
1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1, 51% Federal funds, Older ‘Americans Act Titte 1l — Suppomve Services Grant, as
. ‘awarded .by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services; Administration for
- Community Living, on November 8, 2021 October 28, 2022, ‘and August 30, 2023,

. Assistance Llstmg Number (ALN) 93.044, FAINs 2201NHOASS and 2301NHOASS.

1.2 49% General funds.
4, Modlfy Exhlbrt C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

-3 - Payment shall be for services provrded in the fulfillment of this Agreement, as spec;lﬂed in Exhibit
B — Scope of Ser\nces and in accordance wuth Table 1 - SFY 2023 through Table 4 - SFY 2026

below:

3.1. Table 1 - SFY 2023 (6 months, 1/1/2023 - 6!30/2023)

' " Geographic A_re_a- Units Granted ' Rate Funds Granted -
Strafford County, NH 475 - $14 10 per one way tnp . $6697.50 |

32 TabIeZ -SFY 2024 (12 months 7/1/2023 6/30712024)

Geographlc Area Units Granted Rate Funds Granted
Strafford County, NH 1,994 - $14.10 per one way trip © $28,115.40
3.3 ~ Table 3 —SFY 2025 (12 months, 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025) _ _
Geographic Area *| Units Granted | Rate’ | Funds Granted \
Strafford County NH 2910 - $14.10 per one way trip _ $41031.00( ‘Z _
Commumty Actlon Partnersh|p of Straﬁord County A-5-1.3 . A Contractor tnitials : 3 2 L
: #5007 l 24 d
RFA-2023 BEAS 07 TRANS-01-A01 : " Page1of4 fo . D te

v7.92.23
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34. - Table 4—SFY 2026 (12 months, 7/1/2025 — 6/30/2026)
o Geographic Area " Units Granted " Rate Funds Granted

Strafford County, NH 2910 $14.10 per one way trip $41,031.00

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, _St_éction 4,toread:

4: Reserved .
os .
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County A-5-1.3 . Contractor Inili%Is ' L
i : /172024
RFA-2023-BEAS-07-TRANS-01-A01 s Page 2 of 4 . © Date

v7.42.23
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Al terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by th:s Amendment remain in full force and effect
Th|s Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024 upon Governor and Council approval.

INVWITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their’ hands.as,of the da_te written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

= DocuSigned by:

37472024 . , _ %U-«g
Date ' " Name: RPMSa Hardy

Title:  pirector, DLTSS

Cornmunity Agtion Partnership of Strafford County

s o | . ! ; ' ’ DocuSigneﬂ by: ; !
04 | [ s-Parkr
Date - _ _ an‘fg“ B%SF'-~Anr::lre_ws parker

' Trtle CEO '

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County ~ A-S-1.3
RFA-2023-BEAS-07-TRANS-01-A01 - ‘Page 30of4
ef.7.12.23 . :
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The prebeding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substahce, and
execution. o - ' : '

'OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

. . . Doedswby_—.
3/4/2024 - - [/j’&tﬁ Gunvins
Date -~ ' : Nan’{‘e“%mg;ll‘wuual T

Title: }_xttorney

I heréby_ certify' that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govémo_r and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: __ " __ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

'Da.te . Name:
' ' Title:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County - A-5-1.3 .
RFA-2023-BEAS-07-TRANS:01-A01 - *  Page4of4
o7 -eff.7.92.23 : .

3 O
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S_tat':_e of New Hampshire
| Department of State

CERTIFICATE:

I, Dawd ‘M. Scarilan, Secrctnry of State of thé State of New Hnmpsh:re do hercby certify that, COMMU'NITY ACTION
5 PARTNERSHIP OF. STRAFFORD COUNT'Y isa Ncw Hampshn‘c Nonproﬁt Conporat:on registered to transact business in Ncw )
' Hampshuc on May 25, l965 1 further. ccmfy that aII fccs and documcnts required by the Secrctary of Sm!c s office hnvc bccn '

'recelved and is m good standing as fo.r 8s ths office i is conccmed. B

_Busmcss ID: 65583
‘ _'Ocmﬁcatc Numbcr 0006195759

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause o be affixed
the Seal of tie State of New Hasripshiré,
this 4th day of April AD. 2023,

David M, Scaiilsn
" Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l, e Alan Brown__ ' . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elecled Off:cer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatoryj

1.1ama duly elected ClerleecretaryIOfﬁcer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
(Corporat:on/LLC Name)

2. The followmg is a true’ copy of a vote taken ata meetlng ‘of the Board of Dlrectorslshareholders duly called and '
heId on October 19 2022, at'which a quorum of the Dlrectorslshareholders were present and voting.
(Date) : : _
VOTED That Betsey Andrews Parker, CEQ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contracl Sugnatory) S ‘

is duly authorized on behalf of Commumty Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter lnto contracts ar
agreements with the State .
. " (Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departménts and further is authonzed to execute-any and all
documents, agreements-and other instruments, and any amendments, - revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may | in h|slher 1udgment be deswable or necessary to effect the puipose of this vote.

3l hereby certafy that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to .which this certificate is attached. This authority “remains valid for”
thirty (30) days from the date of this. Centificate 'of Authority. 1 further certify that it is understood that the Staté of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above ciitently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any

- limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein. B Wf
Dated:__February 21, 2024__ R : .

SignatUre of Elected Officer
Name: Alan Brown
Title: Secretary

Rev.03/24/20
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ACORD' _ CERTlFICATE OF LIABILITY msumnce IR o el

11/08/2023

' THIS CERT!FICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
: .CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRHATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES °
ek BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT. CONST!TUTE ACONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIED
.-REPRESEHTA'ITVE GOR PRODUCER, AND THE CERHHCATE HOLDER, .

_' TMPORTANT: ‘i the certificate holder ls an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(iu) musthave Aomnoum. INSURED provisions of bc -ndomd
*'-If BUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to'the terms and conditlons of the pollcy. certaln policles may require en endorssment. A stntcmont on‘
_“this.cortificate does not confer righ‘bl tothe certificata holder In lleu of such sndorsemant(s). . . — s

nnoouqq ; W-‘“'*c' Terl Davis =~ , !
CGlinsurance, " i Y, ; PN (877) 5628954 ' T PR oy (806) 674-2443
EDanmnhDﬁn - . ™ . | ADDRESS! T'Davis@CGlBuslnmlmuraneem i : . 7 L
Adburn : 5, T NH 03032 INBURER'A : HanoverinsurancaConwry R =
WwsURED : . |msurerg: EastomAlllance e o nA0T T
Comn'n.mhyActlon Pammwpofswuord Counry wsurer ¢ : Philadelphia Indemnlty
DBA: Straflod CAP .~ ~ : e g - . .
S77 Corital S Si0 10 - ' m—— i
- Dovel. . - L U .o INSURER £ 5 T i) L
COVERAGES . . CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 Master . REVISION NUMBER: . - j s

-THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD ..
INDiCAT‘ED NO'N-'ITHSTANDINGANY REOUIREMENT TERM OR CONDITION ‘OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS _ *;
. CERTIFICATE MAY. BE ISSUED OR MAY' PERTAIN THI l_NSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICiES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SU&IECT TO ALL THE T'ERMS
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'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the-Board of Dlrectors 2
Communtty Actlon Partnershlp of Straﬁ‘ord County and Aff Irate '

Report on the Audit of the Financial. Statements
'Opinion & ' )

We have audited the accompanylng consolidated financial statements of Communlty Action Partnershlp'
of Strafford. County {a ‘New Hampshlre nonprofit organtzatlon) and Affiliate, whlch comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related
consolidated ‘statemerits -of- activities, functional experises; and’ cash ﬂows for the years then ended .
and the related notes to the consolrdated fi nanC|aI statements e ‘
In our oplnron the consolldated fi nanmal statements present fairly,‘in all materiat respects the financial
position of Community Action Partnershtp of Strafford County and Affiliate as of December 31, 2021
-and 2020, -and the changes in its’net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance '
wrth accountlng pruncaples generally accepted in the Umted States of Amenca

Basis for Oplnion

We conducted our audlt in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted-in the United States
of America vand’ the standards . apptlcable to financial audits. contained in Government- Audmng
Standards, issued.by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Alditor's Responsibilities for, the Audit of the Financial -
Statements section of our report. We are required to be-independent of Community Action Partnership

- of Strafford County and Affiliate ‘and to meet our other €thical responsibilities, in accordance with the .

. relevant ethical requirements.relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evrdence we have obta:ned
is sutf cient and appropnate to prowde a basns for our audit opinions. : :

,Responsibihtres of Management for the Fmancra.' Statements

Management is. responsrbte for the preparatlon and falr presentatlon of the consohdated fi nanc:|a|
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, impleméntation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and »
fair presentation of consolidated fi nanc:tat statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. : : :

In preparmg the t‘ nancial statements management is requwed to evaluate whether there are cond|t|ons
"or events. considered in'the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Communlty Action
Partnership .of Strafford County and Affiliate’s ablllty to continue.as a going concern ‘within one year
.after the date that the consohdated fi nancral statements are avaliable to be issued.
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'Auditor's Résponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

‘our objectlves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consohdated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

- report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is' a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit condléted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and -Government Auditing- Standards will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is_
“higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional ‘omissions,
mlsrepresentatrons or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is

. a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would .inflience the Judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolldated financial statements. .

In performrng an audlt in accordance with generally accepted audltlng standards and Government’
Audrtrng Standards, we:

. 'Exercrse professronal judgment and malntaln profess:onal skeptrorsm throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the rrsks of matenal mlsstatement of the, consohdated financial statements

whether due to fraud or error, and de5|gn and perform audit procedures responsive to those

. risks. Such procedures include examining, on.a test basis, evidence regardrng the amounts and
dlsclosures in the consolrdated f nancial statements.

o. - Obtain- an understandlng of mternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropnate in the' circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

- opinion on the effectiveness of Communlty Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's
“internal control. Accordrngly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used. and the reasonableness of significant
-accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentatlon of the
consolidated f‘ nancual statements
. , :
e Conclude whether iinour, judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantral 'doubt about .Comimunity Action Partnership of Strafford County and
* Affi Irate s ability to contrnue as a going concern for.a reasonable perlod of time. . .

We are reqwred to communicate with those charged w:th governance regardlng, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certaln internal control-related
matters that we identified dunng the audit.
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. Supplementary Informat:on

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formlng an opmlon on the consolldated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expendrtures of federal awards, as reqmred by Title 2 U.S.
Code .of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform’ Admmrstratrve Requirements, Cost Pnncrples and
Audit Requrrements for-Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a

fequired part of the consolidated financial - statements. Such information is the responsublllty of

management and was denved from and relates directly to the underlying accounting arid cther records _
uséd to. prepare the consohdated financial statements. The information has been” subjected to the:
~ auditing procedures apphed in the aldit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional

procédures, tncludlng comparing and reconcullng such information directly to the underlylng account:ng ol

- and other records. used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themsélves,- and other additional .procedures in accordance with auditing : standards:
.generally accepted jn_the United- States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expendltures of -
federal awards is- fa!rly stated,” in -all "material respects, in relatfon to the consolidated financial
statements as awhole. e :

Other Reportlng Requured by Government Aud.-trng Standards

In accordance W|th Govemment Audmng Standards we have also :ssued our report dated January 20,

2023, on our consideration of Community Action Partnershlp of Strafford County and Affi liate’s internal
‘control over financial reporting and on our tests of its comphance with certain provisions. of laws,
regulatlons contracts,-and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to -
describe the scope of our testing of .internal control over financial reporting -and.compliance and the -
results of . that testing, and not to provide-an opinion on the ‘effectiveness of Community ‘Action
Partnershlp of Strafford County and Affiliate’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in consudenng Commumty Action Partnership of Strafford County and_Affi Ilates mtemal control over

“fi nancual reportmg and compliance.

fu. g

Dover, New Hampshlre
January 20, 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND. 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
,Cash and cash equivalents
" Accounts receivable
Contnbut;ons receivable
Jnventory -
" Prepaid expenses
_ Other current assets

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
" Restricted cash
Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depremauon
Other noncurrent assets

-Total noncurrent assets

" TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS .

CURRENT LIABILITIES
- .Demand note payable
Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable,
Accrued payroll and related taxes
" Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Refundable advances
" Paycheck Protection Program
Other current liabilities

Total current Iia‘bi.li'ties‘ '
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES _
Long term debt, less current portion shown above
. Security deposits
‘ Totai noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
"NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Financial Statements

4

2020

021 .
$ 1550537 § 1,316,311
2.130.211 2,268,903
" 12,600 " 38,400
- 511,532 226,233
36,666 . 36,318
1,334 .t
4,242,880 3,886,165
18,991 1 e
8,469 5326
6,110,022 5273,321
25503 . - | 27,500
- 6,162,985 5,308,147
$ 10405865 $ 9.192,312°
$ - $ 105,377
134 868 18:343
921,039 4,497 685
136,247 88 682
145,234 131:108
5 107,606
950,865 473,291 -
. 97,500 ",
- 1,318
2,288,253 2,520,910 -
3,221,845 2,775,919
. 3,201 -
3,225 046 2,775,919
6,613,299 5,296,829
© 4,533,937 ° 3,593,917
358,629 ©'301,566
4 892 566 3,805,483
$ 10405865 -~ $ 9,192,312

{
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2021

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND. OTHER SUPPORT

© Grant, revenue
- Fees for servrce\,v...
Rent revenue
.Public supporit -
In-kind donations
Interest
Fundraising
" Other revenue
Loss on drsposal of equnpment

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS '

Total revenues, support; and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES _
‘Program services
" Child services
“ Community services
Energy assistance
.Housing =
Weatherization
Workforce development

Total program services
Supporting activities
- Managementand genera! -
Fundraising
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

Without Donor
" Restrictions Re'str'ictrone Total
$ 10989740  §$- - 'S 19,989,740
2,576,520 12,576,520
51,351 S 151,351
352,142 358,629« 710,771
898,056 - - -898,056
'+ 635 e ... 635
20,050 ; 120,050 °
725,966 2 + 725,966
(51 681) . 61, 681)
_'24 562,779 358620 24,921 408
301,566 ~ ___(301,566) .
24,864,345 57,063 . .. 24,921,408
5,251,539 : 57251,539"
' 2,036,906 2,036,906
2,459,441 - © 2,459,441
10,714,923 - © 10,714,923
2,483,701 : 2483,701
© 3793 g 3,793
. 22,950,303 - 22,950,303
. 905,781 ° : 905,781
68,241 : 68,241
23_,924,325 - . 23924325
940,020 - '57,063 . 997,083
3,593,917 301,566 3895483 -
'$ 358620 $ 4,892,566

With Donor

. § 4533937

5"
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CONSOL!DATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2020

With Donor

 Without Donor _
_ . ) n _ Restrictions Restrictions Total
CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS o

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT : o - .
Grant revenue $ 11,412,231 - . % 11,412,231 .
Fees for service 1,544,770 - 1,544,770
Rent revenue . 15,255 ' - 15,255

" Public support 451,985 255,657 707,642

- In-kind dohations 630,948 = 630,048
Interest 103 - 103 -
Fundraising 64,423 - 64,423
Gain on disposal of equipment 2,000 - - 2,000

Total revenues and support 14,121,715 255,657 14,377,372 -
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM -
RESTRICTIONS 265,181 {265,181) -
" Total revenues, support, and net ) _
assets released from restrictions 14,386,896 (9,524) 14,377,372
EXPENSES

Program services . :

- Child services - 4,470,403 - - 4,470,403
Community services 2,258,463 - 2,258,463
Energy assistance 2,063,659 - 2,063,659

" Housing ™. 2,920,930 - 2,920,930
Weatherization _ 1,347,740 - 1,347,740
‘Workforce development - 82,113 - 92,113

Total program services 13,153,308 - 13,153,308

' ‘~Supponing activities .

Management and general 894,695 - 894,695
Fundraising 75,349 - 75,349

Total expenses 14,123,352 : 14,123,352

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 263,544 (9,524j ; 254,020

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,330,373 311,090 3,64'1 463

© NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR -$  3,593.917 $ 3,895,483

See Notes to Financial Statements

6

301,566



. " DocuSign Envelopa ID: 7AF52897-TF31-4025-5FDB-TF1BD81 4492C

’ CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2021

Intermediate Management

Chlld Communlty Energy . y . Workforce Totel Program . (Allocation) and : :
ervices Services Assistance Housing - Weatherization Development ~ Services  ~  Pools © General undraist Jotal

Payroll ' $ 2611252 § 768110 $ . 282483 0§ 463574 0§ 423279 0§ 2317 0§ 4251015 S - BaMe  $ 577712 § 14794 $ 4932840
Payroll taxes 230,588 68,376 24,924 40,252 8,988 228 - 371,356 TT.893 48473 1,406 . 427128
Frnge benefits | 190915 38183 17,619 31,419 15,004 . . 289 - 283,499 3,388 55,482 ) 1,224 353,603
Weatherization material, fuei 83377 140.408 2,052,544 0,900,048 2218830 | - 14,384,307 © - d 1 F - 14,384,307

and dlient assistance . J i . B L |
irekind expenses i 573,046 324950 - L 60 i S e - 898,058 - . i - - 858,056
" Consultants and contract labor 239,299 . -52,738 4,627 19,672 880 i 79 T 3T.2Ts, © 16,518 184,175 15574 - 513,540
Consumable supplies 213,448 229,104 430 T4z 23,112 - - © 47388 23,038 9,941 922 508,638
“Rent 612,028 175,280 31,758 87,818 17,134 e84 - 924,902, (450,603) -42,128 1,729 518,184
Repairs and maintenance 48,939 . 4881 : 12,782 48,073 - 945 . 115620 . 208,872 12,280 2476 427,228
Insurance 83,971 9,598 1,312 . 24,908 6,157 4 125947 . 12,208 43,418 107 183,678
Meetings, events and training 80,601 . 9184 394 762 10,774 ’ - * 101,685 . 1404 13,052 20573 138,724
Depreciation 78,670 . 18,502 -am- 23,390 - 4328 - - 128,281 - 70,500 - = 198,781
Travet . 19,408 1,877 - 888 1,689 e - 23783 {550ty . . 587 30 18,879 -
Copying and postage  ~ 3380 | 265 . . 7.202 - 403 254 ’ .- -, 11,504 1,275 4813 4638 . 22.2%
Retirement . 13,216 - 3.001 1,223 B 3,377 a2 12 " .21,16% 274 - . (3.843) - e 17,696
Equipment and compuler 27,783 5 95,608 7877 . 39,490 . 46,908 .- . 217,476 4273 (82,364) 550 139,885
.interest expense 76,249 8,070 . 13621 8,314 - 4,917 - M7 6377 - 18489 899 . 138638
Other program suppo g 38.823 . 50,208 - 454 '5,835. .- - 95,118 (7.594) 19,273 3215 . 110012
Indirect costs b 45,536 40,785 " 5 . - - . - 86,321 - '(86,321) - : L.

Total expenses . $ 5251538 § 2035006 § 2450441 3 10714523 'S 2,483,701 $ 3793 522950303 % - 8005781 5. 68241 $ 23924325

See Notes to F_Innncial Statements

7 "
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Intermediate Management

Chid Communlty Energy [ Workforce Total Program {Adlocation} . and .
Services Services Assistance Housing Weatherization Development . Services Pools General Fundraising Total
Payrol ) $ 2,297,109 - S 540,858 $ 227785 5 229407 $ 120813 $ . 47695 $ 3463665 $ 102,844 $ 561412 $  .28548 $ 4155466
Payroli taxes . 184,239 . 44,388 17,229 g ' 18,357 8,211 3,599 2?6.023: : 7.997 26,085 2,153 312,238
Fringe benefits i 226,396 14,882 32476 11,348 15,430 6,999 . 307,529 5789 25,805 . 1,890 - 340,813
veatherzation material, fuel , - ; ' . . i ) i .
and client assistance 41,758 84,176 . 1,651,570 2,502,856 1,143,419 4,266 ° 5,428,045 - - - 5.428,045
In-kind expenses = 200,585 430,363 - - - - - 630,948 ' - - : - 630,948
" Consultants and contract tabor 252,203 119,717 10,453 - 32,780 4,518 515 420,184 22,527 82,335 4410 529,458
Consumable supplies 226,999 .. 745587 1,208 2,043 . 8,439 89 . 982,345 192,867 L2397 3,551 . 1,202,534
Rent ] 465,693 85,822 58,320 31,382 8,404 20,860 670,481 {526,032} 30688 2294 . T 17753
Repairs and maintenance 72,495 47,814 13,378 11,090 6,409 752 151,938 - 214,923 - 10,523 ' 8,880 . 386,264
Utilitles 120,444 12,453 g 12,220 23,703 ) 2,569 3,250 174,839 {24,810} . 21210 760. 171,759
Insurance . 78,188 6,499 1,234 28,753 3,677 i 854 119,205 13.988 7688 158 141,039
Meetings, events and training €0,027 21,508 204 180 8,638 g - . 90,557 215 7,122 1,276 99,170
Depreciaton i 74,321 26,863 391, 4,621 4,328 z 2,320 112,844 - 69,958 - 182,800
Travel " © 35.896 6,534 202 477 3722 500 47,30 (18,292) 1,145 © 158 30,342
Copying and postage - - 31,080 592 6,612 262 260 217 38,992 ’ - 4,334 5,201 48,528
Retirement . 11,942 3,31 1018 d 1,271 314 177 18,041 257 T 4,764 113 23,175
Equipment and computer 10,001 ' 41,181 11,181 T 20,307 1,664 20 , 84,334 2,350 2278 70 89,030
Interest expense 79,974 5,128 17.816 2,005 T 8,849 H i 113,772 2,168 15,343 1,058 132,339
Other program support 1,082 20,799 | 385 - 90 78 N . 22,434 3,512 i 198 - 14,731 40,875
_ Total expenses $ 4,470,403 $ 2,258,463 $ 2.063.659 $ 2920930 5 1.347.740 $. 92113 § 13.153,308 - - $ 894,695 s 75,349 $ 14,123,352

See Notes to Finaricial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2021 AND 2020

2 i P a~

2021 2020
" CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . e
‘Change In net assets . ' $ 997083 8 254,020
Adjustment lo recongile change in nat assats to ;
nel cash provided by operating aclivities: ) O i
Contribution of building |mprovements ' (170,288) -

Depreciation .. 196,781 182,800 -
Gain (loss) on disposal ot equipmant L _ B i -61.681; . {2,000) -
Forgiveness of debt - Paycheck Protecuon Program. - i . (97,500} - i’ 3 -
(lncrease) decrease’ in assets: ' o ] ]
‘Accounts receivable - - = - 0138692 - (743,128)
Contributions recervable : ' ; 25800 - - . 29,700
Inventory - . .{285,299) . (206,723) .
Prepaid expenses . _ " {348) .. (23,748)
Other current assets ’ (1,334) -
Sacunty deposils _ R (3.143) . 24
Other rioncurrent assets - : o 1,097 .
Increase {decrease) in liabilities: _ c L
Accounls payable 7 (576 646) 1,042,409
Accrued payroll and related taxes . 47,565 (104,748)
. Accrued compensaled absences : 14,126 46,836
Deferred reverue -~ - . {107,606) - 107,608
" Refundabla advances 477,574 {(17.734)
- Other, current liabilities - = t . (1,318) - o (3,637)
Securily deposils C B m 3,201 -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 711,018 561,677

‘ CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES _ .

) Purchases of property and equipment 7’ (323,975} - (640,971)
Proceeds on sale of equipment L = - = © 2,000
Acqu:sntlon of property from Dover Daycare Learnmg Center (590,800} . L -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (914,875) - {638,971)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ) i :
Borrowings of long-term debt 7, ¥ 326463 - 485,181
‘Payments made-on long-term debt - ' - (48,188) - {257,765)
Net repayments on demand note payable _ _ (105377 - T (55)

; Assumplgon»ol debt of Dover Daycare Léarning Center: 284,176 '
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program’ : : . . - 97,500

NET CASH 'PROVII_)ED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES . 457,074 324,861

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 253,217 247,567

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF YEAR ' 1,316,311 1,068,744

CASH ‘AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR § 1569528 § 1316311

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION .
Cash paid during the year for interest ] $ 133,966 3 130,185

See Notes to Financial Statements

(N
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NOTE 1.

CONSOL|DATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"' FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature. of Orqanlzatlon and Prmclplis of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal-Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to'help meet their basic

. needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency.'is to eliminate

poverty in -Strafford County through compassion, education, seIf—suﬁ"cnency,

-transparency, accountablllty team work, client focus and profess:onallsm

Academy Street Family Housmg, LLC (Academy Street) is a.limited liability
company which is consolidated because the Agency controls 100% of the voting
power of Academy Street. Academy - Street leases property from the Agency
under a lease agreement for an annual rent amount of $1. The lease
commenced on Aprlf 21, 2020 and expires April 2045. Unless either party serves
the other with a 180 day written notice prior to the expiration of the initial term, at
the end of the initial term, the lease shall be automatically extended for -an -
additional 25 year term. All significant intercompany items and transactions have
been eliminated from the basic financial statements.

In addmon to the Agency’s, admlnlstratlve office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its -outreach capacity by operating program offices ‘in Farmington, -
Milton, ‘Rochester, Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Fedeéral,

. state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,
- foundation and charitable. grant funds, fees for service, private business
. donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite

board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders.from for-profit

and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is

responsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and
community outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
people annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated -approach is
accomphshed by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies. :
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2021 AND 2020

Basis-of Accountlnq o -
The“consolidated financial . statements have been prepared usrng the accrual’

~ basis of accountlng in accordance with Genera!ly Accepted Accou nting Pnncrples

GAAP) of the United- States B % 4 W

Frnanclal Statement Presentatron - ;
The consolidated financial- statements have been prepared in accordance with

- U.sS. generally accepted accounting prmcrples (US GAAP), which require the.

Agency to’ report information regarding- its financial posrtron and actrvrtles-,
accordlng to. the followmg net asset classrfcatlons '

_ Net assets wrthout donor restnctlons Net' assets that are not subject to

- donor-imposed ,restrictions and, -may . be. expended for -any purpose ; in
performing the primary objectrves of the Agency These net assets may be
-used at the discretion of the Agencys management and board of,
darectors :

Net“assets with donor restrictions:. ‘Net assets ‘subjectto stipulations -
" imposed 'by donors and-grafitors. :Somé donor restrictions are temporary *. -
in naturé; those restrictions will be met by actions of the -Agency or by
.passage of time, ‘Other donor restrlctrons are. perpetual |n nature whereby

the donor has strpulated the funds bé marntalned in perpeturty

Donor restncted contrrbutrons are reported as increases |n net ‘assets wrth

donor restrrctlons When restrlctlon explres net assets -are" reclassrt’ ed

.- “from net- assets “with dornor restrictions - to net assets w1thout donor
. restrlctlons in the statement of actrvrtles i

At December 31 2021 and 2020 the Agency had net assets wrthout donor and

wrth donor restnctlons

Refu ndable Advances : :

Grants - received in advance are recorded .as refundable advances and
rec09mzed as revenue in the period in which the retated services are performed
or expendltures are mcurred 5
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

Contrlbutlons

_ All contributions are considered to be available for unrestrlcted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor. for future periods or for specific purposes are reported ‘as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support dependrng on -the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution i is- recerved the Agency reports the’ support as unrestricted.

Contrlbuted Servnces
- Donated services are recognized as contrlbutlons in accordance. Wl'th FASB ASC ‘
“No: 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and .Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) requue specialized
skrlls and would otherwase be purchased by the Agency

Volunteers prowded various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the financial statements sirice the recognltlon criteria under
’ FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial instruments
. .Unless otherwise indicated, fair values of all reported assets -and liabilities that
are t'nancral instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts

.

Inventory '
Inventory materlals are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed

value, usmg the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation :

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5 000, are capitalized

at cost or,"if donated, at the approximate fair value at-the date of donation.
- Specific grants and ‘awards may have a threshold -lower than this amount and

that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are deprecrated over their

estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows: -

Bur!drngs and |mprovements ; 15 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machlnery - - 3-10years
Vehrcles . : 5- -7 'years

. Deprematlon expense aggregated $174,278 and $182, 800 for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

" The Agency has accrued a liability of $145,234 and $131,108 at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

12
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- CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 EOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

'Income Taxes L e '
-The Agericy is exempt from income taxes unde? Section 501(0)(3) of the Internal
Révenue: Code The Intérnal Revenue Service has determinéd the Agency to.be
. other .than ‘a™private foundation: The Agency is also exempt from the New
~-'Hampsh|re Busmess Enterprrse Tax : ‘ -

Accountrng Standard Codifcatlon No 740 “Accountlng for Income Taxes

establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measunng,
_the benet”ts of tax return posmons in fnanclal statements. Management has
'analyzed ‘the - Agencys ‘tax’ posrtlon taken on‘its rnformatlon returns for - the -
' prevrous three: tax’ years and has concluded that no addltlonal prowsron for -
“.|ncome taxes |s necessary in the Agency S fnancral statements

._Cash and Cash @gwalents
The". Agency considers all highly Irqurd fnancral mstruments wrth onglnal
matunt:es of three months or Iess to be cash equrvalents -

.‘t.

Revenue Recognrtlon Pollcy ; '
The Ageéncy ‘derives revenue- from grants fees for servrces donatrons publlc !
- support . and’ fundrarsrng Revenues dre recognlzed when control of these,-

. services . :are .- transferred to customers, in an-. .amount _ that reflects  the -

_ ‘.:"con5|derat|on the - Agency expects to :be entltled lo. in exchange for -those
- services. Cost incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as. incurred when

> the amortlzation period i is less than a year.-‘Academy Stréet. denves revenue. from

o ..the rental of apartment - units. Revenues are recogmzed as’ |ncome monthly,_._
“when rents become due 'and control of the apartment units’is transferred tothe .

“'Iessees Control of the leased units is transferred to- the lessee in an exchange

for’ the Ieased unlts The cost mcurred to obtaln a lease ‘will be expensed as
mcurred : -

N Use of Estlmates r : ! :

" The” presentation: of f“nancual statements in conformrty with generally accepted.
~accounting prnncrples requires management to make estimates and assumptions
‘that -affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure- of
contlngent assetls. and- |Iab[|ItIeS at the date of thé financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses durmg the reporting penod Actual
results could drffer from those estlmates ) L

_i =5 F v

s

Advertlsmq Expenses
~ The Agency. expenses. advertising costs as they are mcurred Total advertlsmg '
-costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $32 082' _
and $27 725 respectlvely : . 1
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

- Debt Issuance Costs
.As required under FASB- Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
* amortization expense for the years.ended December 31, -2021 and 2020 °
amounted ‘to.'$2,156 and has - been _included with mterest expense in the
- consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
- financing costs have been mcluded as a reductron of the long term debt (see
Note 9) ‘

~

In-kmd Donatlons ) '

The Agency pays below- market rent for the use of certain facrlrtres In.
accordance. with. generally accepted accounting . principles, the difference
“between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental -
" space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind éxpense-in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $185,979 and $179,636 for the years ended December 31,

2021 and 2020, respectrvely

The Agency also recelves contrlbuted professronal services that are reqmred to

be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of

these services was determined to be $113,778 and $17, 812 for the years ended
- December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectrvely

. The Ageéncy also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $594,404
and $3,895, respectively, for the year ended December 31,.2021. For the year
ended. December 31, 2020, .the estimated fair value of these food commodities

.and goods was determrned to be $415 835 and $17, 665, respectrvely '

.-Functronal Allocatlon of Expenses -
The costs of providing the various programs and other actlvmes have been
- summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy. costs have
beén. grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such ‘allocations have '
been determmed by management on an equrtable basrs '

The expenses that are allocated include the followrng

Expense - Method of allocatlon
Salaries and benefits ' Trme and effort
-Occupancy ‘ Square footagelrevenues
| Depreciation - _ . Square footage
* All other expenses Approv‘ed-indirect rate

14
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NOTE 2.

NOTE'3.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31l 2021 AND 2020

" PROPERTY

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, property consrsted of the followmg
2021 . 2020
~ Land, burldrngs a'nd.rmprovements © o+ $6,324,193 ¢ $5,499,660
Furniture, equrpment and machinery =~ - 340,883 - 646,283
_ Veh|c|es ‘ 350,136 350,136
© Total . 7015212 6,496,079
Less accumulated deprecratron T 905,190 1,222,758
N_et property . ' $6,110022 $5.273,321

‘RESTRICTED CASH BAL: BALANCES

Certain cash accounts have been establlshed and are being funded in accordance

‘with a. regulatory agreement entered into’ between Academy ‘Street and New

Hampshire Housing as.discussed below. -“All:reserves are required to be held in

i qualrfed ‘New Hampshire fi fnancral mstrtutrons that are’ msured by the FDIC

. Operatlnq Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement Academy Stieet-is requrred 20} establrsh an

: operatlng reserve. The operatrng reserve ‘was establlshed and funded during the

year ended December31 2021

i

“Replacement Reserve

Under.the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is requrred to set aside amounts

- for - the replacement of :property and other. expenditures approved by New
~ Hampshire: Housirig. “Addrtronally, ‘Academy’.Street is required to make monthly -

payments to the reserve The reserve was properly funded durrng 2021,

: .-Insurance and Real Estate Tax Escrows -
.~ Academy Street is required to establish. a reserve to fund tax and insurance

payments in the-project. Amounts are to be deposrted ona monthly basis to'accrue
a sufficient balance to pay: future tax and insurance bills of the project. As of

" . December 31,2021, the balance in the reserves for tax and insurance escrows’ was
properly funded ' s : '

r“\”

Resrdual Recerpts Reserve . | o '
The regulatory. agreement:\ wrth ‘New Hampshrre Housrng requrres Academy Street
to ‘establish. and marntarn a.residual receipts reserve to be funded with excess .

| 'deposrts after all other pro;ect accounts have been fully funded. As of December
'31 2021. and 2020, Academy Street had not establlshed thls reserve account '
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NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

NOTE 6.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

IgUIDlTY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Agencys financial assets as of December 31, 2021
and 2020: ;
2021 . 2020
_Financial assets at year end: ; ]
- Cash and cash equivalents - $1,550,537 % 1,316,311
Accounts receivable : 02,130,211 2,268,903
Contributions receivable 12,600 38,400
Restricted cash . ; - 18,991 -
Total financial assets 3712339 3623614
- Less-amounts not available to be used
within one year:
Restricted cash 18,991 -
Board designated funds’ : 307.315. 307,315
F inancia! assets available to meet general _ _ :
expenditures over the next twelve months 3,38 3 . $3.316299 .

- The Agency’s goal is generally to maintain fnancral assets to meet 30 days of

operating expensés. As part of its liquidity plan, exces$ cash is mvested in short-
term mvestments including money market accounts.

-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that.are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection’ efforts are written off through a
charge .to the- valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to.be zero at December 31,
2021 and 2020. The Agency has no policy for chargmg mterest .on overdue
accounts. :

‘ CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which- have been made by
donors  but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contnbut:ons recelvable has been recorded
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NOTEZ;~

- _NOTE 8.,

NOTE 9.

- 4:90% mortgage payable to Kennebunk'--Sayin'gs

' CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED. DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

Total uncondltlonal promlses to glve were as. follows at December 31, 2021 and |

.2020
2021 - 2020
. Within one'year - - '$. 8500 $ 34,307
In two to five years : 4100 4.093
$ 12600 £ _38.400
PLEDGED ASSETS

. As described in Note 8, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under'

the Agency's demand note payable agréement. As described in Note 9, the

‘building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency S mortgage note-

payable agreement.

i

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

“The’Agency has available a revolving line of credrt wrth a bank in the amount of -

$250,000. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate. -
plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate ‘'of 4.25% at December 31, 2021 and
2020 The note is coIIateralrzed by all the assets of the Agency

' LONG TERM DEBT
. The Iong term debt at-December 31, 2021 and 2020 consrsted of the followrng

021 - 2020

Bank with .interest only payments for 36 months

followed .by principal and interest payments for

264 ‘months for the. first ten years. In 2028
principal and ‘interest payments will adjust to .
1.60%-above the highest ﬁve-year Federal Home
Loan Bark of Boston interest rate. The mortgage

" note payable is secured by real estate. - .- $ 1,909,874  $ 1,929,978

5.00% notes payable to the New Hampshrre_'

'Communlty loan Fund with monthly principal and.

interest payments of - $4,762, maturing”’ " August
2024 through October 2043. ‘The notes aré

‘secured by real estate. - . 668143 427,975
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, .CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

: - _ - 0 2020
5.75% note payable to First Seacoast Bank with
monthly principal and interest payments of $493,
maturing October 2023. The note is secured by . -
real estate. - 31,261 -
Non- mterest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until April 21, 2060
or until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus
_.cash is available. The note is secured. by real
estate. ; 785,889 485,181
3 Non-inte'rest' be_aring note .payable to New -
“'Hampshire Housing deferred until-July 1, 20510r
until the project is sold, refnanced or surplus cash
is available The note is secured by real estate. 25755 . -
" Total long term debt before current portion of long X
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs . 3,420,922 ° 2,843,134
.Current portion of long term debt ' h . (134,868) (18,343)
Unamortlzed debt issuance costs ' (64,209) (48.872)
Total long term debt Y 3!221 845 §2,77’5,919
The schedute of maturities of Iong term debt at December 31, 2021 is as follows
Year Ended :
December 31 ' Amount
2022 - '$ 134,868
2023 ; 93,508
2024 _ 322,041.
2025 - 96,072
2026 100,909
Thereafter : -- 2,673,524
- Total . $3.420,922

Subsequent to year end, the mortgage payable listed above was’ ‘refinanced. The
interest rate will be fixed at 4.25% for ten.years and will adjust on April 26, 2032,

and on that date every year thereafter to 1.50% above the highest U.S. Prime
Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal on the apphcable change date with
"a floor rate of 4%.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _
EOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 10.. NET ASSETS E e
- -'At December 31,-2021 and 2020, net’ assets wrth donor restrrctlons consrsted of
the followmg ;
R S S 2021 ' 2020
- Summer meals - $ .- $ 44,438
Building campaign 59,447 44,712
 Whole family 67,355~ - 25,846
- COVID related 124,546 . 111,100 -
Homeless outreach 8,317 5,001
Fuel assistance 80,164 - - 55,902
- Weatherization . 18, 800' - 14, 4?7
Total M § 301566
At December 31, 2021 and 2020 net assets wrthout donor restrictions conS|sted
of the followmg :
£ 021 : 2020
Undesignated $4,008101 $3, 286 602
Board designated ' 307 315 307 315
' Total net assets witheut donor restrictions m M
NOTE 1_-1; LEASE COMMITMENTS |

" Facilities occupied by the Agency for its cormmunity service programs dre rented .

under the terms of various leases. For the years ended December 31,2021 and
2020, the annual Ieaselrent expense for the leased facilities was’ $250 736 and

.$143,308, respectrvely Certam equ:pment is Ieased by the Agency under the
terms of varrous Ieases

The approxrmate future rnlnlmum Iease payments on the above- Ieases are as
follows: .
Year Ended
December 31

2022 $
2023 '
2024
2025
2026 -

Thereafter

:‘ArnOUnt'

35, 526

(D = b =l )

Total $ '357'539-

19 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7AF52B97-7F31-4D25-9FDB-7F 1BD814492C

NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

NOTE 14,

NeTE 15. .

- CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

RETIREMENT PLAN.

.- The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covenng substantlally

all employees: Employee contributions to the Plan are made' at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the- Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee'’s contribution up to 5% of the _
employee’s compensation. Effective April 1, 2016,"the Agency instituted -an auto

. enroliment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,

employees reserve the right to decline the auto enroliment. Employer matchmg
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $17,702
and $23 170, respectlvely .

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The  Agency- receives a majority of - its- support from" federal and state

governments. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately
91% and 90%, respectively, of the Agency's total.revenue was received from .

federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support

were to occur, it would have a sngmfcant effect on the Agencys progfams and

_actlwtles

ICONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains_its cash balances at several fnancual institutions in New
Harhpshire, The balances are insured by the _Federal Deposit Insurance .
Corporation up to $250,000. The- Agency maintains an agreement with its

- primary fi FnanC|a| institution to collaterahze the balances in excess ‘of $250,000.

CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives gfant funding. from varlous .sources. Under the terms of
~these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
-and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures

were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to répay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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- NOTE 16. .

NOTE 17.

" NOTE 18.

?’:.

TION

' CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
~ FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE .

During the year.ended December 31, 2021, Academy Street entered into four o
separate - rental”’ agreements for ‘'use of their four apartments. The rental
.agreements :expired during April 2022. Monthly. payments for the agreements

‘ ranged from $1,168 to $1 394 and were due the first day of each month

The approxrmate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as _
follows

Year Ended

December-31 _ Amount
" 2022 - g 24400
Total .t g 21400

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM ) _
During the year ended December 31 2020, the Agency recerved funds under the

- Payroll Protectron' ‘Program (PPP) The PPP was establrshed as part of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic . Security Act (CARES ACT). The PPP ~
provided loans for quallfymg businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times the average
monthly payroll expenses of the quallfyrng business. ‘The loans and accrued
interest are forgivable after twenty -four weeks as long as the borfower used the
loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefts rent and ut|I|t|es

. and_maintained its payroll levels. The amount of the loan forglveness may be

reduced if the.. borrower termmates employees . or reduces salaries during the;
twenty -four-week period. -During the year ended December 31,.2021, the Agency
. applied for and recewed full forgiveness and therefore, recogmzed $97,500 as
grant revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of actrvrtres for the’
yearended December 31, 2021

OTHER MATTERS

The_impact of the novel coronavrrus (COVID 19) and measures to prevent- its
spread are affecting the Agencys business. The significance of the impact of -
-these disruptions, mcIudmg the extent of their adverse impact on the Agency’s .
. financial operational results, will be dictated by the Iength of time that such-
disruptions continue and, in_ turn, . will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemrc and the impact of governmental regulatlons
that might be rmposed in response to the pandem|c

: Dunng the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 and through the date of

this report the Agency has not experienced a srgnlfcant decline in revenues nor
“a srgnrfcant change in its ‘operations. : i
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NOTE 19.

NOTE 20.

NOTE 21.

NOTE 22.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS'ENDE_D DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

ACQUISITION OF DOVER DAYCARE LEARNING CENTER

-~ During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Agency acquired all of the assets
‘and liabilities of Dover Daycare Léarning Center (the Center). Total assets and
liabilities acquired were approxumately $591,000 and $284,000, respectively. The

Agency received $391,856 in revenue as a resuit of the acquisition, which is
included in other revenue in_the accompanying consolidated - statement of
activities for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Agency has been running
the operations of the Center since the acqunsutlon :

BUILDING IMPROVEMENT CONTRIBUTION
During the year ended December 31, 2021, Academy Street received a contribution
in the form of building improvements to the property from a. weatherlzatlon program

. managed by the Agency. The improvements totaled $170,288 -and are recorded as

property and other revenue in the December 31, 2021-financial statements.

RECLASSIFCATIONS
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's fi fnancnal statements,

* which was taken from the December 31, 2020 fi nancial statements to conform to

the current year presentatlon

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS ~ .
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of -
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.

‘Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional

evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,

including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing i t"nan0|al statements.

Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide 'evidence about.
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through January
20, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were avallable for
issuance.
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CURRENT ASSETS - )
.Cash and cash equwalenls )
.Accounts réceivable
Contnbuhons receivable
lavenlory .

Prepaid éxpenses -

- Other current assels

Total currént assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash
Security depos:ts
Property, net of accumulaled deprecuahon
Other noncurrent assets’ .

Total-noncurrent essels

TOTAL ASSETS - -

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long tern debt '
) Acoounts payable

Accrued payroll and related taxes
" Accrued compensated absences

Refundable. advances

Total curreq_t Iaa‘bllrt!es
. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current pomon shown above

Secunty deposns
TotaI noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities -

NET ASSETS
Without donér restrictions

With donor reslnchons -

- Total net assets

i.....-". CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL' POSITION :
: DECEMBER 31,2021
o A Academy Yo ' : :
4= . " Street Family - _ _ Consolidating .
CAPSC Housling, LLC . Total _-Adlgsgmen’;s’ Consolidated
SSETS
$ 1,509,331 41206 § 1550537 '8 v - 774580537
2,128,481 1730 002130211 . 2,130,211 -
" 12,600 g 12,600 . 2 12,600
511,532 - | 511,532 s 511,532
36,666 3 36,666 . 36,666
1334 : 1334 : 1,334
e . Ty ; ;
4,199,944 42936 ' 4242880 - . 4242880
b 18,991 18,991 . 18, 991"
5268 - 3,201 © 8,469 - © 8,469
5,204,277 . 905,745.. 6,110,022 - 6,110,022
25503 - 25,503 - 25,503
Tl T . s -
05235048 - - 927,937 6,162,985 . 6,162,985
| 5 9434992 § 970,873 . $ 10405865 § - . $ 10,405,865
" LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS o
arigrt T . e 1([\!.__{15 .
'$ . 120282 § 14586 S 134868 < § - - '$ 134868
©+ 921,039 ; 921,039 L 921,039
136,247 : & 136,247 : 136,247
145,234 : 145,234 : 145234
950,865 - 950,865 - "~ 950,865
2,273,657 14,586 2,288,253 - S 2288253
2442280 - 779,565 -3,221,845 % - 3,221,845 -
- mi 3,201 3.201- 4 3201
5442280 782,766 3,225,046 : ' 3,225,046
4,715,947 797,352 5,513,299 v - 5,513,299
4,360,416 173,521 4,533,937 S 4533937
358,629 ,° - - '358,629 : 358,629
4719,045° 173,521 4,892,566 2 . 4,892,566
s 9,434 992 $ 970873 $ 10405865 § - § 110405865

TOTAL I._IAB[LITIE_S AND NET ASSETS |

LFr v |$3

8 See Notes to Financlal Statements
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVIT[ES

- FOR THE Yi YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS .

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue .
Fees for service
. Rent revenue
Public support -
.-In-kind donations
"Interest
Fundraising
Other-revenue
Loss on dlsposal of eqmpment

To'tal revenues and support

-

. EXPENSES

Program services

~ Child services
Community services
Energy asmstance
Housing
Weatherization
Workforce development

Total program services
- Suppo'rting act'ivities

Management and general
Fundralsmg :

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

'NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR -

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR -

See Notes to Financial Statements

. Academy
Street Family .

CAPSC Housing, LLC  Consolidated
( >
$ 19,989,740 '$ - . $ 19,989,740
2,576,520 - 2,576,520 .
9,118 42,233 51,351
710,771 = 710,771
898,056 z 898,056
. 609 26 . 635
20,050 - 5 20,050 -
550,978 174,988 725,966
(51,681) - (51,681) .
124,704,161 217,247 24,921,408
5,251,539 : 5,251,539
2,036,906 x 2,036,906
2,459,441 L 2,459,441 .
10,680,968 33,955 10,714,923
2,483,701 2 2,483,701
3,793 3 .. 3,793
22,916,348 33,955 22,950,303
899,138 6,643 905,781
68,241 - 68,241
23,883,727 40,598 23,924,325
820,434 176,649 997,083
3,898,611 (3,128) 3,895,483
$ 4719045 $ 173521 . $ 4,892,566
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comm : : ;

i} . o B[ I R 11 1o ML VR R .
SCHEDULE OF EXXCPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDA :ND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS Ea -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2071 -

ASSISTANCE
] FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 1 .. LSTING -
P H G| - NUMBER
Chitd end Adutt Care Food Program : 10558
Sumetr Food Bervice Progrem for Children 10.559
“Nationsl Sehool Lunch Program T 10.558
* Food Diattbution Chuster .
‘Emergency Food Asak Progrem {Food & o i 10.389
Total U.S. Depertment of Agriaiure E
B of Housh Urbeni © )
Supportive Housing o Ib-Bduir " 14157
'Cumxmbﬂehpmﬁnﬂ&_mhlmcrm‘ te 228
CDBG Entlement Graria Chster
mmmmrmml&m 14218
7 DX Block Grans [ Grant 14218
Emem.n:y Solutions Grani Program 'u.z:l
CV-Emergency Solutions Grant Program - -1
Continuum of Care 14287
Gomhuumofm = 14.267
w Huﬂhg Prog’tm - 14135
nuus Demnmluﬁhmhg-\dumm Dﬂw
1.8; Deparimhent of Laber
WWIOA Acuri 17.258
WI0A D(um:ed Wierker Formuta Granty. 17278
- Tomrus, Demmut of LsborAWEOA Chuster
8, Dipartme m
. Ass ot | ety Persona - © 1,042
Tota'l-_u.s. Depattment of Energy '
e .
Coronawirus Rellef Fund - 21.019
Emrgmey Ruml A:sbt-m Pmmn 21.02)
' ‘_-Tahll.{.S.Dcpumthanmy 3
# el
e’ { . ! hnmwwmae:mm o!FodmlAnd-

25

PASS-THROUGH _
CRANTOR'S NAME

Statn 41 New Harpahire Department of Educaion

Stutn 61 Now Hampshire O e ot

Exate’ of New Hampahics Departmant of Education |

Dower Houatng Authirty
Strafiory County. NH COFA

Gy o Dower, New Hampstice

City of Rochestit, New Hainpshire

State of New Hampahire Departmant of Heetth and Hisman Services
State of New Hampshire Department of Heah and Human Services
i 3 .

mwni'wmm.ocp.}ummmmmm
sutummmnwnommmarmmmmsm

Mdummmuommmmmmm

Southern New Hampahire Services, Inc.
Southetn New Hampehire Services, Inc.

State of New Hampshirs Govemers OﬂuMEnuw.l Community Services

Gwmm Orlzc clEmcrﬂuncy Rzlal'& Racovery

Governot'!OﬂmolErnuneantleﬂRmm

4300.277
N-thm Schoal Care Canters

Hene
Dorver Howsing Aurthority
Z40COPICY
Chty of Dover
Chty of Rochester
05-54-42-423010-7927. 102-50073 1

05-95-42-423010- 1927

019°092-T1 781 020418

2018-0003
2016-0003

01.02.02.024010-T708-074-500587

. Housing Stablizaton Fund

P

. FEDERAL
' EXPENDITURES
s 20
$ 281458
AT 2011
)
s
s 30,454
214,109
41,587
$.570 51,297
81,334
123,581 204915
T ATY
33342 112
4,77
) 891,693
3 3,258
0
] 3.3
$- 181,472
3 181.472
[ 20,078
" a8y
3 9,857,543

— T



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS 4

! P ASSISTANCE
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ LISTING PASS-THROUGH = 4 -FEDERAL
EASS.THROUGH CRANTOR/PROCRAM TITLE - HUMBER . QRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER . EXPENDITURES
Matomai, nfant, Exrty Chikdhood g . State ol' New Hempshire Departmeant of Healh and Humen Services, DPH, . A
Homevisling Program . 93870 BPHCS, Matemal A Hesith Section - i 05-95-90-902010-5498 90,167
x [ S . i . :
Promofing Saiv and Stable Familles 9055 “Stute of New Hampshire, DHHS, Division for Children, Youth and Familles 05-0035-042-421010-29730000- 102-5007T34-42 107308 . .42
Tmmrf»\nh!m for Needy Famies 'n.sst State of New Hampahire, DMHS, Division for Children, Youth and Femiles metuumm-uimunma' " 84,088
"Lowincome HmlEmrw Assistance 91.568 State of New Hampehite Govemor's OfSoe of Energy & Planning 01-02-02-024010-TTTS0000-07 4-500347 : 2,202,407 E
- Low-income Homa Energy Assistwnce - 21,568 Sxate of New Hampahire Govemor's Ofice of Energy 8 Planning 04-02-02-024010- 7T0S0000-074-500387 neae L5n2mt .
Community Services Block Grant ¢ wsew Siste of Mew Hampahics, DHHS, DFA . 010-048- 71480930413 Q800
"Gv-Comemunty Services Block Grant 93589 - Sixte of New Hampshice, DHHS, DFA © GIFBINHOOSR - Y. BRLLEL
Mead Start Chustur : ' : ; r
Head Start ! $3.800 Dhrect Funding, i e O1CHOL149501 & 802, 0THPOMIZS002 3,208,125
- CV-Head Start 93.800 Dlrwct Funding . QICHOT149801CY, 01HEODOS1501C8 sz 3,408,002
Matemal and Child Healh Servioes Block Grant to States: 25 Sh!tnl'llﬁv}'llmﬂ"t. DHHS, Division lor Chilkdren. Youth and Famiies 05-083-090-51900000-102-5007 31-90004009 - ) . 2828
Srephanie Tubte Jones Chid Wadtars Program -93.845 State of New. Hampshire, DHHS, Division for Children. Youth end Famites : 08-095-042-421010-20680000- 102-5007 1442106802 . 1,458
Social Services Block Grant . 1 92667 State of New Hampehire, DHHS, Division jor Children, Youth and Familles 05-093-042-421010-29650000- 102- 5007 34-42 1 06803 0 133,184
Tota! U, Department of Health & Human Services ' $ - 24N
TOTAL 0 . . 1 19,051,802
HON-FEDERAL ’
* Horme Energy Assistance Program . - Public USites Company = $ 1T07,441
Electrical Assistance Program Public Utives Company © E ] 183,180

See Notes ts Scheduie of Expenditures of Faderal Awsrds
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2. .

NOTE 3.
NOTE 4. -

NOTES5.

3 .' N . ) ’ . 3 . . -.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

4

"BASIS OF PRESENTATION -

‘The accompanying schedule of expendltures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)

"_mcludes the,fedeéral award activity-of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
- +.31,72021. Thé information in this Scheddle is presented in accordance with the

‘requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform .
Administrative Requrrements ~Cost Prmcrples “and ' Audit* Requirements for -

-Fédgral. Awards: (Uniform Guidance). Because the. ‘Schedule presents only a

selected portion of the operations. of Communlty Action Partnershlp of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the fnanmal posmon changes
in net assets or.cash ﬂows of the Agency - :

r.'- o

SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures’ reported. on the Schedule” are reported on the accrual basis of .
accounting. ‘Such, expendltures are recogmzed following the cost pnncuples ‘

© - contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of- expendltures are not

5

allowable or are llmlted as to relmbursement

'INDIRECT COST RATE . - -
- Community Action Partnershlp of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten

percent de mlnlmts |nd|rect cost rate aIIowed under the Uniform, Gmdance %

' FOOD DONATION s | s TR T
- Nonmonetary assistance -is reported in the Schedule at the falr value of the -

commodmes recewed and dlsbursed

1 G -

_ SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Partnershlp of Strafford County had no subrempuents for the
yearended December 31, 2021 i . :
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED.
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Dlrectors of -
© Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
‘Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally- accepted in the United
States of America and the standards-applicable to financial audits contained in Government
‘Auditing Standards’ issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fi nancial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the. statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows,- and
the .related notes ,to the financial statements, . and have. issued our report thereon dated.
January 20 2023

Internal Control Over Fmanmal Reporting '

In planning and performing our audit of the financial stateménts, we consudered .Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) .
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriaté in the circumstances: for.the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal.
control. Accordmgly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of. Communlty Action

. Par‘mershnp of Strafford County s internal control.

A deﬁcrency in internal control exists when the design or-operation of a control does not allow

. management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements ‘will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on.a timély. basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
- combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consrderatlon of mternal control was for the Itmrted purpose descrrbed in the first
' paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in mternal control
that :might -be'-material “weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
'weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that havé not been identified. Given these
Ilmltatlons durlng -our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
* consider to be materral weaknesses However matenal weaknesses may exlst that have not
beenldenhfed

Complrance and Other Matters '

- As part of obtaining réasonable’ assuranceé about whether Communlty Actuon Partnershrp of -
Strafford Countys financial statemients are free from material misstatement, we performed

" tests of its compliance with ‘certain .provisions of Iaws regulatrons contracts, and grant -
agreements nioncofpliance with which could have a diréct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on comphance
with those. provisions was not an objective .of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such' an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomplrance or other
matters that are requrred to be reported under Government Audmng Standards Siia

Purpose of this Report : SR
. The purpose of this report is solely to descnbe the scope of our testing of |nterna| control and-
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectlveness of
the orgamzatron s internal control or on compliance. This report is an |ntegral part’of an audrt
~ performed " in accordance with- Government Auditing Standards in consrderrng “the
_organization’s internal control and complrance Accordtngly, thrs communlcatron |s not suitable
for any other purpose :

Dover; New _Ha.mpshire
Januiary 20, 2023
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* INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
- EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
. ]

To the Board of Directors of
Community ‘Action Partnershlp of Strafford County -
Dover New Hampshire

' ReE)o'rt on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opmlon on Each Major Federal Proqram
We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s comphance W|th the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the- OMB Compliance
- Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action
Partnership of. Strafford County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2021. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s major federal programs. are.
identified in the summary of auditor’s results sectlon of the accompanymg schedule of findings
and quest:oned costs. :

“In our oplmon Commumty -Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in aII materlaI
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2021. . o .

Basis for Opmlon on Each Major Federal Program ,

. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United -
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, ‘Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards.and the Uniform
Guidance are further descnbed in the Auditor's Responsmllltles for the Audit of Comphance

_ sect:on of our report :
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We are reqmred to be mdependent of Communrty Actron Partnershlp of Strafford County and
to meet+our ‘other..ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
_ relatmg to-our audrt "We believe. that the audit eviderice we have.obtained"is sufficient and -
~appropriate to provrde a basis for our opinion .on compllance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action Partnership of Strafford -
County S compllance w1th the: compllance reqwrements referred to- above o = )
_‘Responsmilltles of Manaqement for Comphance : :
- Management is responsible for compliance with the: requirements referred to above and for the
* design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
srequirements of laws,. statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions- of contracts or grant -
: agreements appllcable to’ Communrty Actlon Partnership of Strafford County s federal'
programs

-Audltor s Resgonsr llltles for the Audlt of Compluance
.. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about'whether material noncompllance with
- the comphance requiremients réferred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion-on Community ‘Action Partnershlp of Strafford County's compllance based
on.our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high.level of assurance but is not absolute-‘assurance
and ‘therefore is-not-a ‘guarantee that an aldit conducted in accordance with- generally
“accepted auditing standards .Government Audrtrng Standards and the-Uniform Guidance will
always - detect ‘material ‘noncomipliance ‘when it exists. The. risk of ‘not detectmg material
- noncompliance resu!t:ng from fraud'is- higher-than ‘for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional 6missions, misrepresentations; or the override_of intérnal
control.- Noncomplrance with.'thé -compliance requrrements referred to above is consudered
-material if there is a substantial” likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate it would
infience the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
‘Community :Action Partnership of. Strafford County S compllance with the reqmrements of each
: major federal program as-awhole. ' :

In performlng an audlt in accordance with generally accepted audltlng standards Government
Audrtmg Standards and the Unlform Gwdance we: ; - s

Eeires

Exermse professronal judgment and malntaln professmnal skeptlcrsm throughout the
.audlt ;

. Identlfy and -assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error
-and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
inclide examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Actlon Partnership of
Strafford County's compliance with the compliance reqmrements referred to above and
performmg such other procedures as we considered necessary in the cucumstances

. Obtaln an understandmg of Commumty Action Partnership of Strafford County S mternat y
' control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to desrgn audit procedures that
are appropriate.in the circumstances and to test and report on _iriternal control over -
comphance in accordarice with' the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of .
-expressing an opinion on the effectiveness “of .Community Action Partnershlp of.
Strafford County’s mternal control over complrance Accordlngly, no such oplnlon is -
' expressed .
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regardmg among other
matters, the planned scope and timing .of the audit and-any significant .deficiencies and
materlal weaknesses in internal control over compllance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compllance '

A defcrency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operatlon of a
control over complrance does not allow management or employees, in- the normal course of -
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct; noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal, control over compliance.is a deficiency, or'a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control “ over compliance, such that there is a reasonable . possublllty that.. material
noncomplrance with a type. of compliance requirement- of ‘a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and- corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program-that is less severe
than a material weakness-in internal control over compliance, yet |mp0ftant enough to merlt

- attention by those charged wath governance :

Our con3|derat|on of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose descrlbed in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not desngned
to identify all deficiencies in “internal - control over compliance’ that might be material
weaknesses or mgmﬁcant deficiencies in internal control - over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal con_trol over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. -However, material
weaknesses or significant defmenmes in internal control over comphance may exist that were
_ notidentified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of .
internal control over compllance Accordingly, no such oplnlon is expressed.”

The purpose of this report on internal control over.compliance is solely to descnbe the scope of

%% our-testing of internal control over compllanoe and the results of that testing based on the
requn‘ements of the’ Unrform Gundance Accordingly, this report is not suntable for any other
purpose -

Dover, New Harmpshire
January.20, 2023
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2021

A. SUMMARYOFAUD!TORS' RESULTS . A r

1. i
- statements of Communlty Actlon Partnershlp of Strafford County were prepared in

The audrtors report exprésses an unmodified opinion on™whether the f"nancral

accordance with GAAP.

‘No srgmfcant det"cuencres relatmg to the audit of the finaricial statements are reported in

the' Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over-Financial Reporting and oh
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in -

'Accordance “with Govemment Audrtrng Standards No material- weaknesses are
:-reported

.. No mstances of noncomphance matenal to the t”nanmal statements of Communlty
Action Partnership of Strafford County, ,which would be required to be- reported |n e

accordance W|th Govemment Audrtrng Standards were drsclosed dunng the audlt

No srgnlf icant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are

reported in the Independent Auditors* Report on. Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal- Control Over Compliance. Requrred by the Unrform Gurdance No
material weaknesses are reported : _ _

The audrtors report on compllance for the ‘major federal award- programs for Communlty

. Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an ‘unmodified oplnlon on all major

federal programs.

Audlt fndlngs that are requrred to be reported in accordance with:2 CFR section
200. 516(a) are reported in this Schedule

The programs tested as major were: U. S Department of Health and Human Servrces

Head Start, ALN 93.600, Maternal, Infant & Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program,. ALN - 93:870 and us. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental
Assistance Program, ALN 21.023, New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Electrlcal

_ Asmstance Program (NON FEDERAL)

The threshold used for dlstmgurshmg between Type A and B programs was $750 000.

Community Action Partnershrp of Strafford County was determmed to be a Iow rlsk :

-audnee

B. FleiNGs_g FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

- C. FIND]NGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM8:
- . AUDIT

' "L.'None
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Community Action P_ajartnership of Strafford County - Board of Directors 2023

James Rathbun

Co_mmﬁni;y Member

-Mauwcn.ﬁ::ﬁlqs

Community Member

'Rdb._ei't Warach

Name . | Address Emp_loymgnt
Terry Jarvis ' I— " | Elécted Official
.Chair ~ - : : New Durham
;j':;;fri ::0 ° _ — Community Membcr_
_ gtleisrz'ti'a?yomw ' — Attomney, Su.'_z.affqrd County
Alan Brown ) Ne\;buryport Bank
Ant_hony Carr _ 'Sh_aheen & éorddn, P.A.
Leah Crouser - . _ NH Public Defender
Hope.'Morfov;r,Flynn. . | — Hc;ovér'& Flyﬁﬁ,_‘Pl;LC
Nicki Gearwar - Co_mm;mity Member
Robert Harrington - Orthopedic Sllit"ger?y
Katrin Kas;j)cr‘ . ' - _ Elected Official, Lee
Sarah Kuhl _ Service CreditUnioq ;
{ Christine McCluskey _ : D.F. Richard Energy -
| lan Qneéil ._ 5 - Bangor Savihgs l;ank'.'
Captﬁi:n'A.ndrew Swanberry . ~ ' Rpchést,e,r,?g]jcg Department .
Mark Toussaint, - Evérsourze
; o0 Blected Officia